AD_____

AWARD NUMBER DAMD17-94-J-4429

TITLE: Measurements of Dioxin, PCB and Organochlorine Levels in Breast Adipose Tissue from Women with and Without Breast Cancer

PRINCIPAL INVESTIGATOR: Dr. Myrto Petreas

CONTRACTING ORGANIZATION: Public Health Institute Berkeley, California 94704

REPORT DATE: November 1998

TYPE OF REPORT: Annual

PREPARED FOR: U.S. Army Medical Research and Materiel Command Fort Detrick, Maryland 21702-5012

DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT: Approved for Public Release; Distribution Unlimited

The views, opinions and/or findings contained in this report are those of the author(s) and should not be construed as an official Department of the Army position, policy or decision unless so designated by other documentation.

20000308 024

DTIC QUALITY INSPECTED 3

<i>6</i>		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
REPORT D	OCUMENTATION P	AGE	Fi O	orm Approved MB No. 0704-0188	
Public reporting burden for this collection of info gathering and maintaining the data needed, and collection of information, including suggestions f Davis Highway, Suite 1204, Arlington, VA 2220	mation is estimated to average 1 hour per resp completing and reviewing the collection of infor or reducing this burden, to Washington Headqu 02-4302, and to the Office of Management and	conse, including the time for review rmation. Send comments regarding larters Services, Directorate for Info d Budget, Paperwork Reduction Pro	ring instruction this burden ormation Ope ject (0704-0	ns, searching existing data sources, stimate or any other aspect of this rations and Reports, 1215 Jefferson 188), Washington, DC 20503.	
1. AGENCY USE ONLY (Leave blan	kl 2. REPORT DATE November 1998	3. REPORT TYPE AND Annual (16 (DATES C	COVERED 7 - 15 Oct 98)	
4. TITLE AND SUBTITLE Measurements of Dioxin, PCB a from Women With and Without	east Adipose Tissue	5. FUND DAMD	ING NUMBERS 17-94-J-4429		
6. AUTHOR(S) Myrto Petreas, Ph.D.	/ / / / / / / / / / / / / / / /				
7. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION N Public Health Institute Berkeley, California 94704	AME(S) AND ADDRESS(ES)		8. PERFC REPOI	ORMING ORGANIZATION RT NUMBER	
9. SPONSORING / MONITORING AC U.S. Army Medical Research an Fort Detrick, Maryland 21702-5	SENCY NAME(S) AND ADDRESS(E d Materiel Command 012	:S)	10. SPON AGEN	ISORING / MONITORING ICY REPORT NUMBER	
11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 12a. DISTRIBUTION / AVAILABILIT Approved for Public Release; Di	Y STATEMENT istribution Unlimited		12b. DIS	TRIBUTION CODE	
13 ABSTRACT (Maximum 200 uu					
This study explores associations between breast cancer and body burdens of organochlorine chemicals, including dioxins, PCBs and pesticides. The targeted chemicals are lipophilic, bioaccumulate in adipose tissue, and have carcinogenic, estrogenic or anti-estrogenic properties. Cases are women with malignant disease and controls are women with benign histologic changes. Samples of breast adipose are obtained during surgery. Preliminary results indicate low to moderate levels of most target chemicals, comparable to levels reported in other similar studies. The most prevalent pesticides are p,p'-DDE, trans-nonachlor and oxychlordane. The most prevalent PCBs are # 153, 180, and 138. Octa-, Hepta- and Hexa-Dioxins and Penta-Furan are the major Dioxin congeners. A wide range of lipid content was observed, mandating expression of results on a lipid basis. At the conclusion of the study, 50 cases will be compared to 50 controls. Body burdens will be contrasted and chemicals associated with disease will be identified, relative risks estimated and dose-response relationships established. Reduction of exposures to such chemicals could provide a means for primary prevention of breast cancer. Additionally, screening measures targeting women with an elevated body burden of such chemicals could enhance earlier detection of breast cancer, therefore decreasing morbidity and mortality.					
14. SUBJECT TERMS Breast Cancer, Cas PCBs Organocglori	Dioxins,		15. NUMBER OF PAGES 25 16. PRICE CODE		
PCBs, Organocglorine Pesticides 17. SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF REPORT 18. SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE 19. SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF ABSTRACT Unclassified Unclassified Unclassified			CATION	20. LIMITATION OF ABSTRACT Unlimited	

NSN 7540-01-280-5500

3

٠

USAPPC V1.00

FOREWORD

Opinions, interpretations, conclusions and recommendations are those of the author and are not necessarily endorsed by the U.S. Army.

<u>NA</u> Where copyrighted material is quoted, permission has been obtained to use such material.

NA Where material from documents designated for limited distribution is quoted, permission has been obtained to use the material.

M/ _X Citations of commercial organizations and trade names in this report do not constitute an official Department of Army endorsement or approval of the products or services of these organizations.

 \underline{NA} In conducting research using animals, the investigator(s) adhered to the "Guide for the Care and Use of Laboratory Animals," prepared by the Committee on Care and use of Laboratory Animals of the Institute of Laboratory Resources, national Research Council (NIH Publication No. 86-23, Revised 1985).

M/ For the protection of human subjects, the investigator(s) adhered to policies of applicable Federal Law 45 CFR 46.

In conducting research utilizing recombinant DNA technology, the investigator(s) adhered to current guidelines promulgated by the National Institutes of Health.

NA In the conduct of research utilizing recombinant DNA, the investigator(s) adhered to the NIH Guidelines for Research Involving Recombinant DNA Molecules.

 \underline{NA} In the conduct of research involving hazardous organisms, the investigator(s) adhered to the CDC-NIH Guide for Biosafety in Microbiological and Biomedical Laboratories.

1 hear 11-2-98

TABLE OF CONTENTS

۶

2

FRONT COVER	1
REPORT DOCUMENTATION PAGE (SF 298)	2
FOREWORD	3
TABLE OF CONTENTS	4
INTRODUCTION	5
BACKGROUND	5
APPROACH	6
HYPOTHESIS/PURPOSE	6
TECHNICAL OBJECTIVES	7
METHODS	
STUDY POPULATION	7
QUESTIONNAIRES	8
SAMPLE HANDLING	8
HISTOPATHOLOGY	8
DATA TRACKING	9
PRELIMINARY RESULTS & DISCUSSION	9
PRELIMINARY CONCLUSIONS	11
TIMELINE	11
REFERENCES	12

INTRODUCTION

۶

BACKGROUND

In the US, breast cancer is the most common cancer in women and the leading cause of death in women between the ages of 40 and 55⁽¹⁾. All known risk factors, however, are estimated to account for fewer than 30% of breast cancer cases ⁽²⁾. Incidence rates have increased at a rate of 4% per year between 1982 and 1986⁽³⁾. Although this increase is thought to be mainly due to earlier detection as a result of enhanced screening⁽⁴⁾, part of the increase may be due to environmental factors. Extensive use of organochlorine pesticides and industrial chemicals in the first decades after WWII and the bioconcentration potential of these compounds in the food chain and in human tissues (5) may have placed a cohort of men and women at a high risk of exposure. As these women approach menopausal age, a well-documented risk factor ⁽⁶⁾, their body burden of these chemicals may place them at an even higher risk for developing breast cancer. A number of recent studies (7,14) have explored links between breast cancer and the presence of certain of these chemicals in humans. These studies vary in terms of sample size, matrix analyzed (serum vs. adipose), selection criteria and confounder adjustments. In the more recent and better designed studies, positive associations were found for β -HCH⁽⁹⁾, DDE^(10,11,12), DDT ⁽¹⁰⁾ and PCB 1260 ⁽¹⁰⁾. On the other hand, no associations were found for DDE ^(13,14), or β -HCH ⁽¹²⁾ in subsequent studies. The inconsistency in these findings is noteworthy; DDE was the only chemical positively identified in more than one study. We believe that, in addition to differences in the design of the above studies (selection of cases and controls, covariates, statistical power), the selection of chemicals for analysis may have contributed to the inconsistent and conflicting results. A careful selection of chemical compounds which may be associated with the development of breast cancer is essential in the design of a study focusing on environmental risk factors.

The critical role of sex hormones in the development of breast cancer is well-accepted ⁽¹⁵⁻¹⁷⁾. Experimental evidence indicates two mutually exclusive pathways in the metabolism of estradiol. One pathway leads to the formation of 2-hydroxyestrone (2-OH-E), a non-genotoxic metabolite with minimal estrogenic activity. The second pathway leads to the formation of 16-alpha hydroxyestrone (16a-OH-E) a genotoxic metabolite with high estrogenic activity ⁽¹⁸⁾. It has been proposed that exogenous compounds may activate or inhibit each of these pathways ⁽¹⁹⁾. Increases in the ratio of 16a-OH-E to 2-OH-E have been linked to breast cancer, while decreases appear protective. As an example, indole-3-carbinol, an ingredient of cruciferous vegetables decreases this ratio and also decreases the incidence of mammary tumors ⁽²⁰⁾. On the other hand, a number of chlorinated organic compounds, PAHs and pharmaceuticals are thought to increase the ratio of 16a-OH-E to 2-OH-E ⁽¹⁹⁾, or even act as direct estrogens. The direct estrogenic potential of some of the DDT analogs is well-documented ⁽²¹⁻²³⁾. There is also experimental evidence on the estrogenic properties of other chlorinated pesticides such as Methoxychlor ⁽²³⁾, Beta-HCH ⁽²⁴⁾, Heptachlor ⁽²⁵⁾, Chlordane ⁽²⁵⁾ and Kepone ⁽²⁵⁻²⁷⁾. It would be desirable, therefore, to include such chemicals, as well as their metabolites (e.g., oxychlordane, heptachlor epoxide, etc.) and chemicals with similar structure (e.g. Mirex as a structural analog of Kepone) in a study of xenobiotics and breast cancer.

5

It is well known⁽²⁸⁾ that specific congeners of Polychlorinated Dibenzo-p-Dioxins and Polychlorinated Dibenzofurans (PCDD/PCDFs) and Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs) have significantly different potency in inducing diverse enzymes, modulating hormone receptor-binding activities, altering levels of thyroid hormone and vitamin A, and resulting in immunotoxicity, teratogenicity, hepatotoxicity, cancer and acute toxicity in various cell systems and animals. Of the over two hundred dioxin and furan congeners, seventeen are chlorinated in the 2,3,7,8 positions. The most extensively studied congener of this group is 2,3,7,8 tetra dioxin (TCDD). All seventeen congeners have a planar structure, exhibit the highest affinity for the Ah receptor ⁽²⁸⁾ and bioaccumulate in human tissues ⁽²⁹⁾. Of the 209 Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs), those substituted on both para- and at least two meta- positions are approximate isostereomers of 2,3,7,8 TCDD and exhibit high affinity for the Ah receptor ⁽²⁸⁾. Additionally, mono-ortho coplanar congeners exhibit affinity for the Ah receptor ⁽²⁸⁾. Additionally, mono-ortho coplanar congeners exhibit affinity for the Ah receptor ⁽³⁰⁾. Unless these specific congeners are measured and controlled for in the analysis, exposures may be misclassified and associations missed.

APPROACH

We decided to examine the value of analysing breast adipose tissue for a wide range of chemical compounds that have the following properties:

1. They are lipophilic with long half-lives in human adipose tissue resulting in bioaccumulation, and

2. There is evidence for their carcinogenicity and/or their estrogenic or anti-estrogenic potential. The selected chemical compounds (target analytes) are listed in Tables A, B and C in the Appendix.

HYPOTHESIS/PURPOSE

The purpose of the study is to drastically expand and refine the panel of chemical compounds that have been suspected of an association with breast cancer. Target compounds will include specific congeners of PCBs (rather than total PCBs); PCDDs/PCDFs and chlorinated pesticides with demonstrated carcinogenic or estrogenic/anti-estrogenic potency.

The hypothesis to be tested can be formulated as follows:

Ho: For each chemical compound in Tables A, B and C, there is no statistically significant difference in its concentration in breast adipose tissue of cases and matched controls.

TECHNICAL OBJECTIVES

۶

The aim of the study is to elucidate the associations between breast cancer and the presence of organochlorine pesticides and specific PCB and PCDD/PCDF congeners in adipose tissue of women undergoing breast surgery.

The specific objectives of the study are:

- 1. To recruit, screen and select women for participation in the study.
- 2. To administer a questionnaire on medical and reproductive history, dietary habits and other health behaviors, environmental exposures, demographics and socioeconomic status.
- 3. To obtain samples of breast adipose tissue during surgery.
- 4. To analyze the adipose samples for a panel of chemicals.
- 5. To determine any correlations between chemicals measured in tissues of cases and controls. This would allow us to a) control for highly correlated measurements in a multivariate analysis of the data, and b) identify chemicals which can be used as surrogates for others, therefore reducing the number of analytes that would need to be measured in future studies.
- 6. To use multivariate logistic regression to calculate exposure-specific odds ratios while controlling for other risk factors, including other chemical compounds.

METHODS

STUDY POPULATION

The study subjects are recruited from among women undergoing open surgical biopsy, lumpectomy, or mastectomy at Stanford University Hospital. Stanford is a referral hospital drawing patients from a wide area in Northern California. While the target population is not representative of the general population of the State, it is representative of women at highest risk for breast cancer: predominately white and of higher socioeconomic status. The demographic and clinical profiles of study subjects will be compared to those for Stanford Hospital in general and, for breast cancer cases, to those reported via the population-based surveillance system covering the greater San Francisco Bay Area.

For the purpose of this study, cases are defined as women with definitive breast malignancies, and controls as women classified with benign histologic changes. Because of the strong association between atypical hyperplasia and subsequent breast cancer, women with atypical hyperplasia are excluded from the control group. Women with carcinoma in situ are also excluded as this is thought to be a tumor marker for elevated risk for development of future breast cancer in either breast. Also excluded from both the case and control groups are women with previous cancer diagnoses and women taking tamoxifen. Controls will be matched to cases by five-year age intervals. A total of 50 pairs will be accessioned into the study.

QUESTIONNAIRES

\$

All study-eligible women are asked to sign a consent form and a medical release for access to medical records information, including the pathology report and associated diagnostic data. They are then asked to participate in an epidemiologic interview with two questionnaires:

- 1. Dietary Questionnaire. The dietary instrument is Gladys Block's short (60-item) inventory. The instrument has been used in a variety of cancer epidemiology studies by the California Department of Health Services, and serves well to estimate relative consumption of many dietary constituents, including total percent calories from fat.
- 2. Breast Cancer Study Questionnaire. The in-person interview solicits information on medical and reproductive history, family history, occupational and environmental exposures, health habits, and demographic characteristics.

Whereas the Dietary Questionnaire is used without any modifications, the Breast Cancer Study Questionnaire was developed specifically for this study. The instrument was field tested on 15 women in the pilot phase of this study, repeatedly modified and further refined to its current final form. Both the Dietary and the Breast Cancer questionnaires have the patient's medical record number as the sole identifier to ensure confidentiality during data review and coding.

SAMPLE HANDLING

In women undergoing surgical breast biopsy or wide local excision (lumpectomy or tylectomy), about 2 grams of breast adipose tissue are obtained from beyond the edges of the biopsy or excision cavity. For women undergoing mastectomy, similar amounts of breast adipose tissue are obtained from a site distant from the tumor in order not to interfere with pathologic analysis. The removed adipose tissue is immediately placed in chemically clean glass jars with teflon-lined screw caps. The jars are labeled with the medical record of the patient, with no other identifiers to ensure confidentiality and unbiased chemical analysis. Samples are frozen to below -20 C^o and transported to the Hazardous Materials Laboratory (HML) for analysis.

<u>HISTOPATHOLOGY</u>

Histologic sections of all breast lesions are evaluated by the Stanford University Department of Pathology. Diagnoses are coded as invasive malignant disease, non-invasive malignant disease, or benign histologic changes. Patients with breast disease classified as atypical hyperplasia or carcinoma in situ are excluded from the analysis.

A copy of the pathology report is reviewed for the definitive diagnosis and, for the cancer cases, additional tumor information is extracted including TNM staging; cell type; tumor size; histologic grading determined by nuclear atypia, mitotic activity, and tubule formation; and angiolymphatic perineural invasion. For invasive tumors only, presence of axillary lymph node metastases; estrogen

and progesterone receptor status; and possible DNA flow cytometry and S-phase fraction analysis is obtained.

DATA TRACKING

\$

All completed questionnaires, medical records and pathology reports are kept by the PI in a secure filing cabinet. Periodically, information is extracted, coded and entered in a computerized data base specifically designed for the study (FilemakerPro). The patient's medical record number is the sole identifier in this data base. At the completion of the study, this data base will be merged with the data base of chemical analysis results and the combined data base will be subjected to statistical analysis.

A listing of all specimens archived in the laboratory freezer is also kept by the PI. A status report on completed analyses is updated biweekly.

PRELIMINARY RESULTS & DISCUSSION

As of October 1998, tissue samples from 84 participants had been extracted and prepared for analysis. Because analysis involves three different process streams with different instrumentation, not all analyses are performed in parallel. As a result, 82 samples have been analysed for dioxins and coplanar PCBs and 61 samples have been analysed for PCBs and OC pesticides. Analyses will proceed in the most optimal way to complete the project.

Selected demographic characteristics and distributions of selected covariates for the 84 participants (40 cases and 44 controls) are shown in Table 1. Incidence data from the California Cancer Registry for Stanford (1995, the most recent year recorded) are shown in Table 2. Both our study and the Stanford cases are predominantly Non-Hispanic White, but our study population is dominated by subjects in their 40s. At the end of the study a review of hospital accession data will allow us to examine how representative this population is of the population served by the hospital, and of the Bay Area population at large.

A wide range of lipid content was observed in the specimens received for analysis, as shown in Fig.1. In addition, there is a modest but significant association between lipid content and age. It is, therefore, imperative that results be expressed on a lipid basis to avoid misclassifications. This finding raises questions regarding the validity of certain published studies where data were used without lipid adjustment (Table 3). Perhaps some of the reasons for the conflicting findings may be traced to this issue.

Measurements of the major analytes are summarized in Table 4. The number of patients whose samples have been analysed so far (indicated as "N" in Table 4) differs from one type of analysis to the other. In addition, the percentage of those samples that were measured above the respective detection limit for each analyte is also shown. These preliminary data for the entire group of 84 women (cases

and controls combined) are compared to data from other appropriately selected studies in Figs 2-4. All data are expressed on a lipid weight basis

4

Fig.2 shows the major OCPs from this study ranked in decreasing order. The comparison population is a group of 17 controls from a Canadian Breast Cancer Study ⁽¹³⁾. Not all OCPs measured in our study were measured in the Canadian study. Overall, levels appear similar, with the California study showing higher levels of trans-nonachlor and oxychlordane, both metabolites of chlordane. This may reflect lower historic use of chlordane in Canada, consistent with a colder climate.

Major PCB congeners are shown in decreasing order in Fig.3. The same Canadian population⁽¹³⁾ is used for comparison and our data appear elevated for some congeners and similar for the rest. A number of PCB congeners were not measured in the Canadian study.

Major Dioxins and Furans, as well as the three coplanar PCBs are shown in Fig.4. Three populations are used for comparisons: Dioxin and Furan measurements in 48 composite adipose tissue samples collected in 1987 from the general US population⁽³⁴⁾, dioxin and furan measurements in adipose tissue from 17 women from the San Francisco Bay Area collected in 1988⁽³⁵⁾, and coplanar PCB measurements in 28 adipose samples from Atlanta⁽³⁶⁾ collected during autopsies in 1984-1986. Because of the small size of our tissue samples (sometimes less than 0.5 g), some PCDD/PCDF congeners were below detection. In such cases, I-TEQs were calculated using half the detection limit of the non-detected congeners. To facilitate comparisons with the other two data sets where, because of larger tissue samples, most congeners were above detection, an adjusted TEQ (Adj-TEQ) was introduced utilizing only those congeners that were consistently measured in most samples.

Dioxin and Furan levels appear similar to those in the earlier studies, particularly since subjects in these studies had different age distributions, a known confounder in dioxin body burdens. No systematic data are available from the US to establish US-based time trends. Similarly, no systematic data exist for co-planar PCBs in the US population. The Atlanta co-planar PCB data appear similar over all to our data.

An important finding was the high proportion of women with Carcinoma In Situ recruited into our study. Since these women cannot be included in either the Cases or the Control groups, we are setting them aside in search of additional funding that would allow analysis of these women as a separate exposure group. Inclusion of this third group would enhance our power to establish dose-response relationships.

In addition, the age distribution differs between the recruited Cases and Controls, the former being older than the latter. Since our study design calls for 100 age-matched cases and controls, the pool of eligible women needs to increase beyond the 160 currently in the study. Our efforts to balance the age frequencies in the two groups has resulted in a distribution favoring women in their 40s, the age range with the most overlap. This age distribution is different from the age distribution of the majority of women with breast cancer (Table 2). Such differences need to be taken into account when extrapolating findings of this study. On the other hand, our study population has a high proportion of premenopausal women, allowing sub-group comparisons.

PRELIMINARY CONCLUSIONS

Based on preliminary data, the following preliminary conclusions can be drawn:

- 1. Results need to be expressed on a lipid basis because the lipid content in the specimens is variable. This finding raises questions regarding the validity of certain published studies where non-lipid normalized data were used.
- 2. Body burdens of major organochlorine analytes appear overall similar, with a few exceptions, to data reported in other similar studies.

TIMELINE

4

During the first year (9/94-8/95) a number of organizational actions were taken, such as hiring and training the field personnel, as well as developing, field testing and refining the Breast Cancer Questionnaire as part of a pilot/training phase. The study started formally in January 1995, with the recruitment, interview and surgical procedures of the first five patients. In February 1995, our surgeon (Dr. Jeffrey) went on maternity leave and returned in January 1996. A one-year no-cost extension was requested and granted at that point.

In 1995-96 another surgeon (Dr. Ellen Mahoney) from Stanford Hospital was invited to participate in the study to enhance the recruitment pace. As a result, patient recruitment increased sharply, as shown in Fig. 5. Excluding women with non-eligible pathologies (atypical hyperplasia, etc.), all participants were interviewed and their specimens archived for chemical analysis. Analytical methodologies were refined, validated and used in the analysis of specimens. Chemical analysis of study specimens commenced.

In 1996-97, recruitment proceeded at a moderate pace, and all eligible patients were included in the study. To further enhance the recruitment pace we expanded the study to include another hospital (Kaiser-Oakland). After lengthy negotiations among the various Institutional Review Boards (DOD, Kaiser, Public Health Institute, California Department of Health Services) we finalized a communal Consent Form. Recruitment from Kaiser-Oakland started in the spring of 1998 and has provided us with a number of eligible patients. The recruitment rate is shown in Fig. 5.

All questionnaires received have been coded and entered in a data base. As of October 1998, approximately 80% of the analytical work has been completed.

Methodologies and preliminary results were presented at the International Dioxin Conferences⁽³⁷⁻³⁹⁾ and at the Era of Hope meeting ⁽⁴⁰⁾.

REFERENCES

- 1. National Center for Health Statistics. <u>Vital statistics of the United States, 1987. Vol. 2. Mortality. Part A.</u> Washington, DC: Government Printing Office, 1990
- 2. Seidman H, Stellman SD, Mushinski MH. <u>A different perspective on breast cancer risk factors: some</u> <u>implications for non-attributable risk</u>. New York, American Cancer Society Professional Publication, 1983
- 3. Miller BA, Feuer EJ, Hankey BF. The increasing incidence of breast cancer since 1982: relevance of early detection. Cancer Causes Control 2:67-74, 1991
- 4. White E, Lee CY, Kristal AR: Evaluation of the increase in breast cancer incidence in relation to mammography use. J Natl Cancer Inst 82:1546-1552, 1990
- 5. Kutz FW, Wood PH, Bottimore DP. Organochlorine Pesticides and Polychlorinated Biphenyls in Human Adipose Tissue in <u>Reviews of Environmental Contamin and Toxicology</u>, GW Ware, Ed, Volume 120, 1991
- 6. Kelsey JL. Breast cancer epidemiology: summary and future directions. Epidem Reviews 15:256-263, 1993
- 7. Wasserman M, Nogueira DP, Tomatis L, et al. Organochlorine compounds in neoplastic and adjacent apparently normal breast tissue. Bull Environ Contam Toxicol 15:478-84, 1976
- Unger M, Kiaer H, Blichett-Toft M, Olsen J, Clausen J. Organochlorine compounds in human breast fat from deceased with and without breast cancer and in a biopsy material from newly diagnosed patients undergoing breast surgery. Environ Res 34:24-28, 1984
- 9. Mussalo-Rauhamaa H, Hasanen E, Pyysalo H, Kauppila AR, Pantzar P. Occurrence of Beta-Hexachlorocyclohexane in Breast Cancer Patients. Cancer 66:2124-2128, 1990
- 10. Falck F Jr, Ricci A Jr, Wolff MS, et al. Pesticides and polychlorinated biphenyl residues in human breast lipids and their relation to breast cancer. Arch Envir Hlth 47:143-146, 1992
- 11. Wolff MS, Toniolo PG, Lee EW, Rivera M, Dubin N. Blood levels of organochlorine residues and risk of breast cancer. J Natl Cancer inst 85:648-652, 1993
- 12. Krieger N, MS Wolff, RA Hiatt, et al. Breast Cancer and Serum Organochlorines: a Prospective Study among, White, Black and Asian Women. JNCI. 86:589-599, 1994
- 13. Dewailly E, S Dodin, R Verrealt, et al. High Organochlorine Body Burden in Women with Estrogen Receptor-Positive Breast Cancer. JNCI. 86: 232-234, 1994
- 14. van't Veer P, I Lobbezoo, J M Martin-Moreno, et al. DDT (dicophane) and postmenopausal breast cancer in Europe: case-control study. Br. Med J. 315:81-85, 1997
- 15. Key TJ, Pike MC. The role of estrogens and progestrogens in the epidemiology and prevention of breast cancer. Eur J Cancer Clin Oncol 24(1):29-43, 1988
- 16. Harris JR, Lippman ME, et al. Breast Cancer. N Engl J Med 327:319-328, 1992
- 17. Henderson B, Ross R, Pike M. Hormonal chemoprevention of cancer in women. Science 259:633-638, 1993
- 18. Telang N, Suto A, et al. Induction by estrogen metabolite 16a-hydroxyestrone of genotoxic damage and aberrant proliferation in mouse mammary epithelial cells. JNCI 84:634, 1992
- Davis DL, Bradlow HL, Wolff M, et al. Medical Hypothesis: Xenoestrogens as Preventable Causes of Breast Cancer. Environ Health Perspect 101:372-377, 1993
- 20. Bradlow HL, Michnovioz JJ, Telang NT, et al. Diet, oncogenes and tumor viruses as modulators of estrogen metabolism in vivo and in vitro. Cancer Prev Detect S16:35-42, 1991
- 21. Nelson JA, Struck RF, James R. Estrogenic activities of chlorinated hydrocarbons. Toxicology and Environmental Health 4:325-339, 1978
- 22. Robison AK, Mukku VR, Spalding DM, Stancel GM. The Estrogenic Activity of DDT: The in Vitro Induction of an Estrogen-Inducible Protein by 0,p'-DDT. Toxicol and Appl Pharmacol 76, 537-543, 1984
- 23. Johnson D, Sen M, Dey S. Differential effects of DDT analogs, chlordecone and 2,3,7,8-TCDD on establishment of pregnancy in hypophysectomized rat. Pro Soc Exp Biol Med 199:42-48, 1992

24. Coosen R, Velsen V. FL Effects of the beta-isomer of hexachlorocyclohexane on estrogen-sensitive human mammary tumor cells. Toxicol Appl Pharmacol 101:310-318, 1989

٤

- Soto AM, Lin TM, Justicia H, et al. An "in culture" bioassay to access the estrogenicity of xenobiotics (E-screen). In: <u>Chemically induced alterations in sexual and functional development: the wildlife/human</u> <u>connection</u> (Colborn T, Clement C, eds). Princeton Scientific Publishing, 21:295-309, 1992
- 26. Palmiter RD, Mulvihill ER. Estrogenic activity of the insecticide kepone on the chicken oviduct. Science 201:28, 1978
- 27. Eroschenko VP. Estrogenic activity of the insecticide chlordecone in the reproductive tract of birds and mammals. Toxicology and Environmental Health 8:731-742, 1981
- 28. Safe S. PCBs, PCDDs, PCDFs, and Related Compounds: Environmental and Mechanistic Considerations Which Support the Development of Toxic Equivalency Factors (TEFs). Crit Rev Tox 21(1):51-88, 1990
- 29. Rappe C, Andersson R, Bergquist PA, et al. Overview on environmental fate of chlorinated dioxins and dibenzofurans. Sources, levels, and isomeric pattern in various matrices. Chemosphere 16:1603, 1987
- Gallo MA, Hesse EJ, MacDonald GJ, Umbreit TH. Interactive effects of estradiol and 2,3,7,8-TCDD on hepatic cytochrome P-450 and mouse uterus. Toxicol Let. 32:123-132, 1986
- 31. Romkes M, Safe S. Comparative activities of 2,3,7,8-TCDD and progesterone on antiestrogens in the female rat uterus. Toxicol Appl Pharmacol. 92:368-380, 1988
- 32. Safe S. ED: Environmental Toxin Series 1. <u>Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs): Mammalian and Environmental Toxicology</u>. New York: Springer-Verlag, 1987
- Krishnan V, Safe S. PCBs, PCDDs, and PCDFs as Antiestrogens in MCF-7 Human Breast Cancer Cells: Quantitative Structure-Activity Relationships. Tox Appl Pharmac. 120, 55-61, 1993
- 34. Orban J, Stanley J, et al. Dioxins and dibenzofurans in adipose tissue of the general US population and selected subpopulations. Am J Publ Health, 84:439-445, 1994
- 35. Midwest Research Institute. <u>Determination of body burdens for PCDDs and PCDFs in California residents.</u> Final Report. For the California Air Resources Board. ARB Contract No. A6-195-33. 1989
- 36. Patterson DG, GD Todd, WE Turner *et al.* Levels of PCBs and Dioxins in human serum and adipose tissue. Env Hlth Persp. 102 (Suppl 1), 195-204, 1994
- M Petreas, J.She, J.Winkler, P.Visita, M.McKinney. Dioxins, PCBs and organochlorine pesticides in human breast adipose tissue. <u>Proceedings of the 17th International Dioxin Conference</u>, Indianapolis, 1997
- J.She, J.Winkler, M.McKinney, P.Visita, M. Petreas. Development of an isotope dilution GC/NCI-MS method for the analysis of organochlorine pesticides in human breast adipose tissue. <u>Proceedings of the 17th</u> <u>International Dioxin Conference</u>, Indianapolis, 1997
- M Petreas, J She, J Winkler, P Visita, M McKinney, P Reynolds, D Smith, D Gilliss, S Hurley, S Jeffrey, M Mahoney. Levels of PCDD/PCDFs, PCBs and OCPs in Breast Adipose of Women Enrolled in a California Breast Cancer Study. <u>Proceedings of the 18th International Dioxin Conference</u>, Stockholm, 1998
- 40. M Petreas, P Reynolds, D Smith, D Gilliss, S Jeffrey, ME Mahoney. Dioxins, PCBs and organochlorine pesticides in adipose tissue of women with and without breast cancer. Era of Hope, Washington DC, 1997

Characteristic	Controls	Cases	p (x²)
	<u>n (%) *</u>	n (%) *	
Age Group			
< 40	9 (20.4)	4 (10.0)	
40-49	25 (56.8)	18 (45.0)	
50-59	7 (15.9)	11 (27.5)	
60+	3 (6.8)	7 (17.5)	0.12
Race/ethnicity:			
Non-Hispanic White	37 (84.1)	32 (80.0)	
Hispanic	4 (9.1)	2 (5.0)	
Black	1 (2.3)	0 (0.0)	
Asian/Pacific Islander	0 (0.0)	4 (10.0)	
Other	2 (4.5)	2 (5.0)	0.15
Country of birth			
US Born	35 (79.6)	33 (82.5)	
Foreign Born	9 (20.4)	7 (17.5)	0.81
Family Income:	7		0.01
< 50,000	8 (18.2)	8 (21.6)	
50,000 - 99,999	18 (40.9)	10 (27.0)	
100,000 +	18 (40.9)	19 (51.3)	0.38
BMI (kg/m ²)			0.00
< 22	24 (54.6)	22 (55.0)	
- > 22	20 (45.4)	18 (45.0)	0.89
Menopausal Status		(,	
Premenopausal	28 (68.3)	21 (52.5)	
Postmenopausal	13 (31.7)	19 (47.5)	0.11
Age at Menopause			0.11
< 45	7 (53.9)	6 (33.3)	
45+	6 (46.1)	12 (66.7)	0.25
Age at Menarche	(),		
_ <u>≤</u> 12	27 (61.4)	16 (41.0)	
- > 12	17 (38.6)	23 (59.0)	0.06
Parity		(50.0)	0.00
Nulliparous	13 (31.0)	10 (25.0)	
Parous	29 (69.0)	30 (75.0)	0.55
Age at first live birth	· /	(/	0.00
< 30	21 (72.4)	22 (75.9)	
30+	8 (27.6)	7 (24.1)	0.76
Breastfeeding (parous women only)	· · /		0,10
Ever	25 (86.2)	24 (80.0)	
Never	4 (13.8)	6 (20.0)	0.52
Lifetime duration of breastfeeding	· · · · · · /	- (0.02
> 0 to < 6 months	5 (20.0)	11 (45.8)	
\geq 6 to < 12 months	8 (32.0)	5 (20.8)	
12+ months	12 (48.0)	8 (33.3)	0.15
Tumor ER status	/	- (-0.0)	0.10
Positive	N/A	29 (76.3)	
Negative	N/A	9 (23 7)	

TABLE 1. Selected demographic characteristics among breast cancer cases (n=40) and benign controls (n=44).

Totals do not always sum up because of missing information

۴

Study	Stanford
10%	9%
45%	20%
28%	29%
17%	42%
80%	80%
	Study 10% 45% 28% 17% 80%

٠

TABLE 2. Study Patients (Cases only) vs. all Invasive Female Breast Cancer Patients treated at Stanford (1995)

TABLE 3. Summary of findings in similar studies. Analytes found to have a significant association with development of breast cancer are shown along with the tissue sampled and the type of lipid adjustment, if any.

TISSUE	LIPID ADJUSTMENT	ANALYTE	REFERENCE
ADIPOSE	GRAVIMETRIC	-	UNGER. 84
	GRAVIMETRIC	β-НСН	MUSSALO-RAUHAMA, 92
	GRAVIMETRIC	DDE, PCB	FALK, 92
	NONE	DDE, PCB	DEWAILLY, 94
	GRAVIMETRIC	OCDD	HARDELL, 96
	NONE	-	VAN'T VEER, 97
SERUM	NONE	DDE	WOLF, 93
	NONE	-	KRIEGER, 94
	GRAVIMETRIC	-	LOPEZ-CARILLO, 97
	CHOLESTEROL+	PCB	MOYSICH, 98
	TRIGLYCERIDES		
PLASMA	NONE	НСВ	······································
	CHOLESTEROL	-	

Chemical		n	% Detected	Mean	Std. Dev.	Median	Min.	Max.
Fat (%)		84	100	70	21	78	10	95
OCPs (ng/g fa	at):							
	DDE	60	100	745	364	682	120	2200
	trans-nonachlor	60	98	136	148	87	20	690
	Oxychlordane	59	97	72	57	56	17	340
	DDT	56	92	50	43	40	8	260
	HCB	61	100	46	28	35	14	170
	β- НС Н	57	93	42	37	33	1	210
	Dieldrin	59	98	34	30	28	8	230
PCBs (ng/g fat):							
	153/132	61	100	159	97	131	44	559
	180	61	100	139	78	123	55	497
	74	61	100	8 6	107	56	12	790
	138	61	100	98	68	80	16	402
	182/187	61	100	47	31	40	15	212
	170	61	100	60	34	50	21	165
	196/203	61	100	36	20	33	12	132
	194	61	100	42	23	36	16	117
	199	61	100	29	17	27	9	103
	156	61	100	34	28	26	4	160
	118	61	100	27	16	24	6	86
	206	61	100	22	19	15	6	117
	183	61	100	18	13	15	6	79
	99/113	61	100	18	13	13	5	89
	177	61	100	18	14	14	3	85
Coplanar PCB	s(pg/g fat)							
	PCB 126	71	94	106	114	85	1	870
	PCB 169	73	92	63	42	55	2	204
	PCB_TEQ	78	100	38	23	34	7	110
Dioxins & Fura	ns (pg/g fat):							
	TCDD	81	68	5	4	4	1	20
	PeCDD	82	59	11	7	9	3	29
	123678-HxCDD	82	100	61	38	54	10	232
	HpCDD	82	100	72.2	48	62	13	293
	OCDD	82	98	573	568	404	136	3290
	23478-PeCDF	82	94	10.4	5.3	9.5	3	26
	123478-HxCDF	82	89	6	6	5	2	48
	123678-HxCDF	82	85	5	3	4	1	15
	I-TEQ	82	100	17.8	13	14	6	78
	Adj-TEQ *	82	100	20	13	17	3	72

TABLE 4. Concentrations of OCPs, Dioxins and Furans, co-planal PCBs and non-coplanar PCBs among all study participants with complete data. Data expressed as ng/g fat (OCPs, non-coplanar PCBs) or pg/g fat (Dioxins and Furans, co-planal PCBs).

* Adj-TEQ: Based only on the 8 congeners listed

\$



۸.

in 61 WOMEN from THIS STUDY AND 17 CANADIAN CONTROLS FIG. 2. MAJOR OCPs in BREAST ADIPOSE TISSUE



TA∃ g\gn



•

TAJ g\gn

FIG. 4. MAJOR PCDD/Fs and CO-PLANAR PCBs in 82 WOMEN FROM THIS STUDY & 1980's US POPULATIONS

۲ ،



FIG. 5 RECRUITMENT RATE



C) *

Appendix 1

Target chemical compounds Organochlorine pesticides (Table A) Dioxins and furans (Table B) Congener-specific PCBs (Table C)

Measurements of Dioxin, PCBs and Organochlorine Levels in Breast Adipose Tissue from Women with and without Breast Cancer, Annual Report

TABLE A. ORGANOCHLORINE COMPOUNDS TARGETED FOR ANALYSIS

Common Name	CAS Registry	Molecular Formula	Chemical Name
DDT (o,p')	789-02-6	C14H9Cl5	1-(o-chlorophenyl)-1-(p-chlorophenyl)-2,2,2- trichloroethane
DDT(p,p')	50-29-3	C14H9Cl5	1,1,1-trichloro-2,2-bis(4-chlorophenyl)ethane; 1,1-bis(4- chlorophenyl)-2,2,2-trichloroethane
DDE(o,p')	3424082-6	C ₁₄ H ₈ Cl ₄	1-(o-chlorophenyl)-1-(p-chlorophenyl)-2,2- dichloroethylene
DDE(p,p')	72-55-9	C ₁₄ H ₈ Cl ₄	2,2-bis-(p-chlorophenyl)-1,1-dichloroethylene
Methoxychlor	72-43-5	C ₁₆ H ₁₅ Cl ₃ O	1,1,1-trichloro-2,2bis(4-chlorophenyl)ethane
НСВ	118-74-1	C6Cl6	Hexachlorobenzene
α-BHC	319-84-6	C6H6Cl6	α -1,2,3,4,5,6-Hexachlorocyclohexane
β-ВНС	319-85-7	C ₆ H ₆ Cl ₆	β-1,2,3,4,5,6-Hexachlorocyclohexane
у-ВНС	58-89-9	C6H6Cl6	γ-1,2,3,4,5,6-Hexachlorocyclohexane
α-Chlordane	5103-71-9	C ₁₀ H ₆ Cl ₈	1-exo,2-exo,4,5,6,7,8,8-Octachloro-2,3,3a,4,7,7a- hexahydro-4,7-methanoindene
β-Chlordane	5103-74-2	C ₁₀ H ₆ Cl ₈	1,2,4,5,6,7,8,8-Octachloro-2,3,3a,4,7,7a-hexahydro- 4,7-methano-1H-indene
γ-Chlordane	5564-34-7	C ₁₀ H ₆ Cl ₈	1-exo,2-endo,4,5,6,7,8,8-Octachioro-2,3,3a,4,7,7a- hexahydro-4,7-methanoindene
Oxychlorodane	26880-48-8	C ₁₀ H ₄ Cl ₈ O	1-exo,2-endo-4,5,6,7,8,8-octachloro-2,3-exo-epoxy- 2,3,3a,4,7,7a-hexahydro-4,7methanoindene
trans-Nonachlor	39765-80-5	C ₁₀ H ₅ Cl ₉	1-exo,2-endo,-3-exo,4,5,6,7,8-Nonachloro-3a,4,7,7a- tetrahydro-4,7-methanoindane
Heptachlor	76-44-8	C ₁₀ H ₅ Cl ₇	1,4,5,6,7,8,8-Heptachloro-2,3-epoxy-3a,4,7,7a- tetrahydro-4,7-methanoindane
Heptachlor epoxide	1024-57-3	C ₁₀ H ₅ Cl ₇ O	1,4,5,6,7,8,8-Heptachloro-2,3-epoxy-3a,4,7,7a- tetrahydro-4,7-methanoindane
Chlorodecone	143-50-0	C ₁₀ Cl ₁₀ O	1,2,3,4,5,5,6,7,8,9,10,10-Dodecachlorooctahydro-1,3- 4-metheno-2-cyclobuta-[c,d]-pentalone
Mirex	2385-85-5	C10Cl12	1,1a,2,2,3,3a,4,5,5,5a,5b,6-Dodecachlorooctahydro- 1,3-4-metheno-1H-cyclobuta-[c,d]-pentalone

والمتحادث والمراجع

TABLE B. PCDD/PCDFS TARGETED FOR ANALYSIS

s. 🎙

Common Name	CAS Registry	Molecular Formula	Chemical Name
2,3,7,8-TCDD	1746-10-6	C12H4Cl4O2	2,3,7,8-Tetrachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin
Total-TCDD	41903-57-5	C12H4Cl4O2	Tetrachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin
2,3,7,8-TCDF	41903-57-5	C12H4Cl4O	2,3,7,8-Tetrachlorodibenzofuran
Total-TCDF	55722-27-5	C12H4Cl4O	Tetrachlorodibenzofuran
1,2,3,7,8-PeCDD	40321-76-4	C ₁₂ H ₃ Cl ₅ O ₂	1,2,3,7,8-Pentachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin
Total-PeCDD	36088-22-9	C12H3Cl5O2	Pentachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin
1,2,3,7,8-PeCDF	57117-41-6	C12H3Cl5O	1,2,3,7,8-Pentachlorodibenzofuran
2,3,47,8-PeCDF	57117-31-4	C12H3Cl5O	2,3,4,7,8-Pentachlorodibenzofuran
Total-PeCDF	30402-15-4	C12H3Cl5O	Pentachlorodibenzofuran
1,2,3,4,7,8-HxCDD	39227-28-6	C12H2Cl6O2	1,2,3,4,7,8-Hexachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin
1,2,3,6,7,8-HxCDD	57653-85-6	C12H2Cl6O2	1,2,3,6,7,8-Hexachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin
1,2,3,7,8,9-HxCDD	19408-74-3	C12H2Cl6O2	1,2,3,7,8,9-Hexachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin
Total-HxCDD	34465-46-08	C12H2Cl6O2	Hexachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin
1,2,3,4,7,8-HxCDF	70648-26-8	C12H2Cl6O	1,2,3,4,7,8-Hexachlorodibenzofuran
1,2,3,6,7,8-HxCDF	57117-44-9	C12H2Cl6O	1,2,3,6,7,8-Hexachlorodibenzofuran
1,2,3,7,8,9-HxCDF	72918-21-9	C12H2CI6O	1,2,3,7,8,9-Hexachlorodibenzofuran
2,3,4,6,7,8-HxCDF	60851-34-5	C12H2CI6O	2,3,4,6,7,8-Hexachlorodibenzofuran
Total-HxCDF	55684-94-1	C12H2CI6O	Hexachlorodibenzofuran
1,2,3,4,6,7,8-HpCDD	35822-46-9	C12H1Cl7O2	1,2,3,4,6,7,8-Heptachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin
Total-HpCDD	37871-00-4	C12H1Cl7O2	Heptachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin
1,2,3,4,6,7,8-HpCDF	67562-39-4	C12H1CI7O	1,2,3,4,6,7,8-Heptachlorodibenzofuran
1,2,3,4,7,8,9-HpCDF	55673-89-7	C12H1CI7O	1,2,3,4,7,8,9-Heptachlorodibenzofuran
Total-HpCDF	38998-75-3	C ₁₂ H ₁ Cl ₇ O	Heptachlorodibenzofuran
OCDD	3268-87-9	C12Cl8O2	Octachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin
OCDF	39001-02-0	C12Cl8O	Octachlorodibenzofuran

ţ

TABLE C.	PCBS T	CBS TARGETED FOR ANALYSIS				
IUPAC Number	CAS Reg	istry	Molecular Formula	Chemical Name		
77	3259	8-13-3	C12H6Cl4	3,3',4,4'-tetrachlorobiphenyl		
126	5746	5-28-8	C ₁₂ H ₅ Cl ₅	3,3',4,4',5-pentachlorobiphhenyl		
169	3277	4-16-6	C12H4Cl6	3,3',4,4',5,5'-hexachlorobiphenyl		
28	7012	2-37-5	C ₁₂ H7Cl3	2,4,4'-trichlorobiphenyl		
56	4146	64-43-1	C12H6Cl4	2,3,3',4'-tetrachlorobiphenyl		
60	3302	25-41-1	C12H6Cl4	2,3,4,4'-tetrachlorobiphenly		
66	3259	8-10-1	C ₁₂ H ₆ Cl ₄	2,3*,4,4*-tetrachlorobiphenly		
74	3269	0-93-0	C12H6Cl4	2,4,4',5-tetrachlorobiphenly		
105	3259	8-14-4	C12H5Cl5	2,3,3',4,4'-pentachlorobiphhenyl		
114	7447	2-37-0	C ₁₂ H ₅ Cl ₅	2,3,4,4',5-pentachlorobiphhenyl		
118	3150	8-00-6	C ₁₂ H ₅ Cl ₅	2,3',4,4',5-pentachlorobiphhenyl		
123	6551	0-44-3	C12H5Cl5	2',3,4,4',5-pentachlorobiphhenyl		
156	3838	0-08-4	C ₁₂ H ₄ Cl ₆	2,3,3',4,4',5-hexachlorobiphenyl		
157	6978	2-90-7	C ₁₂ H ₄ Cl ₆	2,3,3',4,4',5'-hexachlorobiphenyl		
167	5266	3-72-6	C ₁₂ H ₄ Cl ₆	2,3',4,4',5,5'-hexachlorobiphenyl		
189	3963	5-31-9	C ₁₂ H ₃ Cl ₇	2,3,3',4,4',5,5'-heptachlorobiphenyl		
52	3569	3-99-3	C12H6Cl4	2,2,5,5'-tetrachlorobiphenyl		
99	3838	0-01-7	C12H5Cl5	2,2',4,4',5-pentachlorobiphenyl		
101	3768	0-73-2	C ₁₂ H ₅ Cl ₅	2,2',4,5,5'-pentachlorobiphenyl		
128	3838	0-07-3	C12H4Cl6	2,2',3,3',4,4'-hexachlorobiphenyl		
137	3569	4-06-5	C12H4Cl6	2,2',3,4,4',5-hexachlorobiphenyl		
138	3506	5-28-2	C12H4Cl6	2,2',3,4,4',5'-hexachlorobiphenyl		
146	5190	8-16-8	C12H4Cl6	2,2',3,4',5,5'-hexachlorobiphenyl		
153	3506	5-27-1	C12H4Cl6	2,2',4,4',5,5'-hexachlorobiphenyl		
158	7447	2-42-7 _.	C ₁₂ H ₄ Cl ₆	2,3,3',4,4',6-hexachlorobiphenyl		
170	3506	5-30-6	C12H3Cl7	2,2',3,3',4,4',5-heptachlorobiphenyl		
180	3506	5 - 29-3	C12H3Cl7	2,2,3,3,4,4,5,5'-heptachlorobiphenyl		
190	4141	1-64-7	C12H3Cl7	2,3,3',4,4',5,6-heptachlorobiphenyl		
191	7447	2-50-7	C12H3Cl7	2,3,3',4,4',5',6-heptachlorobiphenyl		
194	3569	4-08-7	C12H2Cl8	2,2',3,3',4,4',5,5'-octachlorophenyl		
177	5266	3-70-4	C ₁₂ H ₃ Cl ₇	2,2',3,3',4',5,6-heptachlorobiphenyl		
178	5266	3-67-9	C12H3Cl7	2,2,3,3',5,5',6-heptachlorobiphenyl		
182	6014	5-23-5	C12H3Cl7	2,2',3,4,4',5,6'-heptachlorobiphenyl		
183	5266	3-69-1	C ₁₂ H ₃ Cl ₇	2,2',3,4,4',5',6-heptachlorobiphenyl		
187	5266	3-68-0	C12H3Cl7	2,2',3,4',5,5',6-heptachlorobiphenyl		

۰.

27

¥